ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 10, 2014
3:21 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representative Lora Reinbold, Vice Chair
Representative M ke Chenaul t
Representative Charisse Ml lett
Represent ati ve Andy Josephson

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve Bob Herron
Represent ati ve Dan Saddl er

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 213
"An Act relating to golf course al coholic beverage |licenses.™

- MOVED CSHB 213(L&C) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 276

"An Act making the Al aska Wage and Hour Act inapplicable to
certain enployees of notor vehicle dealers; and providing for an
effective date.”

- MOVED HB 276 OUT OF COWMM TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 211
"An Act relating to the education and enploynent of individuals
with disabilities."
- MOVED CSHB 211(L&C) OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 213
SHORT TITLE: GOLF COURSE ALCOHOLI C BEVERAGE LI CENSES
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) THOVPSON

01/ 21/ 14 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 10/ 14
01/ 21/ 14 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 14 (H) L&C

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -1- February 10, 2014



02/ 10/ 14 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

BILL: HB 276
SHORT TITLE: MOTOR VEHI CLE DEALER EMPLOYEES
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) THOMPSON

01/ 24/ 14 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 24/ 14 (H) L&C
02/ 10/ 14 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

BILL: HB 211

SHORT TI TLE: EMPLOYMENT OF PERSONS W TH DI SABI LI TI ES

SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) M LLETT, GATTIS, HOLMES, HUGHES,
LEDOUX, JOSEPHSON

01/ 21/ 14 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 10/ 14

01/ 21/ 14 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 14 (H) L&C, FIN

02/ 10/ 14 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

BRODI E ANDERSON, St af f

Representative Steve Thonpson

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 213 on behalf of the prine
sponsor, Representative Thonpson.

HOMARD THEI SS, Owner

Fai rbanks Gol f Course

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 213.

JOVOD STEWART, Project Mnager

Fai r banks Econom ¢ Devel opnent Cor porati on [ FEDCO)
Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 213.

Rl CH SAYERS, General Manager

Anchorage CGolf Course

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 213.

DALE FOX, President/Chief Executive Oficer

Cabaret, Hotel, Restaurant & Retailer's Association (CHARR)
Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- February 10, 2014



PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 213.

SHI RLEY COTE, Executive Director

Al coholic Beverage Control Board ("ABC Board")

Depart ment of Comrerce, Conmunity & Econom ¢ Devel opnent

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 213.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVE THOMPSON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as prinme sponsor of HB 276.

JANE PI ERSON, St aff

Representative Steve Thonpson

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions on behalf of the
sponsor, Representative Thonpson, on HB 276.

GREY M TCHELL, Acting Assistant Conm ssioner

Departnment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent ( DLVD)
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions regarding HB 213.

MARTEN MARTENSEN, Presi dent

Al aska Auto Deal ers Associ ati on (AADA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 276.

VASI LI OS G ALOPSCS, St af f

Representative Charisse MIlett

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the sponsor HB 211

RON PAUL, Disabilities Enploynent Speciali st

Frontier Conmmunity Services (FCS)

Sol dot na, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 211

CATHY BABUSCI O

D rector of Hunman Resources

Mat - Su Regi onal Medical Center (MSRM)
Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 276.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- February 10, 2014



RI C NELSQN, Menber

Governor's Council on Disabilities & Special Education
Departnent of Health and Social Services

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 211.

ERI C YANUSZ
Pal mer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 211.

LUANN YANUSZ
Pal mer, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 211.

M LLI E RYAN, Executive Director

REACH, | nc.

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 211.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:21: 43 PM

CHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:21 p.m Represent ati ves
Rei nbold, MIlett, Josephson, Chenault, and O son were present

at the call to order.

HB 213- GOLF COURSE ALCOHOLI C BEVERAGE LI CENSES

3:21:53 PM

CHAIR OLSON announced that the first only order of business
would be HOUSE BILL NO 213, "An Act relating to golf course
al cohol i c beverage licenses."

3:22:19 PM

BRODI E ANDERSON, Staff, Representative Steve Thonpson, Al aska
State Legislature, stated that currently privately-owned golf
courses can only serve beer and w ne. Unfortunately, due to
this limtation, the privately-owed golf courses are not
provided the same opportunities currently allowed for golf
courses on federal property such as mlitary installations. He
said that mlitary golf courses are exenpt from golf course
liquor |icenses and can serve all alcoholic beverages. Si nce

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -4- February 10, 2014



private golf courses are limted to serving beer and w ne, they
are at a disadvantage to secure |arge events, including
t our nanent s. Addi tionally, unacconpanied mnors can only enter
dining facilities at a privately-owned golf course that serves
beer and wne and mnors cannot play golf wthout being

acconpanied by an adult. This bill would allow golf courses the
sanme privileges as those |ocated on federal property. Under HB
213 privately-owned golf courses could serve all alcoholic
bever ages. The bill would also clarify restrictions for mnors

on the golf course.

MR. ANDERSON referred to a letter in nenbers' packets from|[Ri ch
Sayers, General Manager] Anchorage CGolf Course and O Malley on

the G een. The letter suggests the commttee consider an
anmendnent. He referred to page 2 line 11, which read, "... by a
person over the age of 21 years, and the parent or guardian of
the ...." He explained that having the word "and" neans that
the m nor nust be acconpanied by soneone over 21 and al so has
consent of a parent or guardian. He stated that the letter

suggests [renpval of the |anguage that requires mnors under the
age of 16 to be acconpanied by a person over the age of 21], by

changing "and" to "or." He said this would allow m nors under
the age of 16 to play golf so long as they have parental
consent. He indicated the prine sponsor of HB 213 believes that

is a good change.
3:25: 27 PM

CHAIR OLSON asked whether an anendnent has been submtted to
acconpl i sh the change.

MR. ANDERSON answered no; that the sponsor hopes the committee
woul d entertain anending the bill.

CHAI R OLSON asked for clarification on whether the bill is tinme
sensitive.

3:26:47 PM
The committee took an at-ease from3:26 p.m to 3:28 p. m
3:28:22 PM

MR. ANDERSON stated that the bill has a zero fiscal note and it
will only inpact privately-owned golf courses.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- February 10, 2014



CHAI R OLSON remarked that other golf courses have weighed in on
the bill, as well.

3:28:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked how many golf courses operate
recreational site |icense.

MR. ANDERSON answered that eight golf courses currently operate
with a liquor |icense.

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT remarked that he does not own a golf
cour se.

3:30: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT nade a nmotion to adopt a Conceptual
Amendrent 1, on page 2, line 11, to strike "and" insert "or."

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD objected for the purpose of discussion
She said she preferred the original |anguage; however, she
deferred to the will of the committee.

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD renpved her objection.

3:30: 58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT expl ained the reason for Conceptual
Amendrment 1 is that he and the prime sponsor do not want to

restrict youth from being on golf courses. He offered his
belief that this language will not hanper [the liquor laws] in
any way nor will it allow youth under the ages of 21 to have
better access to I|iquor. He said that "or" fits the scenario

better than "and" does.
3:31: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT rem nded nenbers that any golf course
serving alcohol nust follow the liquor rules of the Al coholic
Beverage Control Board (ABC). This neans all servers nust have
TAM cards [training for alcohol professionals]. It wouldn't be
any different under the bill since servers aren't going to serve
children or allow anyone under 21 an opportunity to drink. She
didn't see any problem having youth on the golf course since all
of the provisions related to al cohol would apply.

3:33:10 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- February 10, 2014



REPRESENTATIVE REINBOLD lifted her objection [previously
[ifted].

There being no further objection, Conceptual Anmendnent 1 was
adopt ed.

3:33:39 PM

HOMRD THEISS, Omer, Fairbanks Golf Course, stated that he
supports the idea of a full liquor license on the golf course
He also appreciated [Conceptual Amendnment 1] since it allows
mnors to practice and inprove their golf. He said that it's
been tough to conpete [with other golf courses] due to the
liquor law restrictions. He stated that he is one of six
owners, and president of the organization. He said the

Fai rbanks Golf Course is in support of HB 213.
3:34: 58 PM
JOMD STEWART, Project Manager, Fairbanks Econom ¢ Devel opnent

Corporation [FEDCO), stated that the FEDCO supports the bill
He said that his boss, [Jim Dodson, President and CEOQ FEDCQ,

sent a letter of support [in nenbers' packets]. The FEDCO
supports HB 213 in terns of attracting tourism related golfing.
Additionally, the FEDCO supports the bill in terms of the
conpetitiveness between the public and private sector. He

explained that the Fairbanks Golf Course is at a conpetitive
di sadvantage since it cannot provide the kinds of things
tourists are accustoned to in other parts of the country. He
concluded that the FEDCO is supporting the bill for fairness,
conpetitiveness, and attractiveness.

3:36: 08 PM

RI CH SAYERS, GCeneral Manager, Anchorage CGolf Course, testified
in support of HB 213 and in support of allowing youth to
partici pate wthout being acconpanied by an adult, as stated in
the letter [in nenbers' packets].

3:37: 08 PM

DALE FOX, President& CEQO Cabar et , Hot el , Rest aur ant &
Retailer's Association (CHARR), said that CHARR supports the
concept of golf course beverage licenses, in which the golf

course purchases a full beverage dispensary license in order to
be able to serve beverages anywhere on the course. He expressed

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -7- February 10, 2014



concern that the bill nmay provide "full beverage dispensary

license"” instead of a "golf course license". He stated that
CHARR believes there is a need to purchase a full beverage
di spensary license to be fair and conpetitive wth other
establishments in the comunity. The second part of the bill
attenpts to address mnors on prem se. The bill as witten
woul d grant 16-year-olds with parental permission the right to
be on the course. He suggested the issue is larger than what
the bill addresses since [it only addresses youth 16 years and

ol der] but 10-year-olds participate in "first tee" prograns and
he has observed a nother dropping off a 12-year-old at the golf
course. He said he wants golf courses open to youth of any age
so kids can learn to play golf. He said, "And maybe we'll get
our next Tiger Wods from Al aska." He suggested that the
conmmittee should allow youth of any age to access the golf
course. olf is clearly a healthy activity and youth should be
encouraged to participate in golfing.

3:39: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked whether he supported [Conceptua
Amendnent 1] .

MR. FOX answered that [Conceptual Amendnment 1] makes sonme sense
al t hough he was unsure whether it goes far enough. He offered
his belief that the age Iimt is a problem for sone of his golf
course menbers.

3:39:34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON said it appears that [subparagraph] (B)
appears to cover any use, at least with parental consent.

MR. FOX answered yes.

3:40: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether the full dispensary
license would be required for spirits so the |icense would need

to be upgraded from beer and w ne.

CHAI R OLSON suggested that the Al coholic Beverage Control Board
(ABC Board) could clarify if this pertains to beer and w ne.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON poi nted out that the bill would delete
beer and wine and insert al coholic beverages.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- February 10, 2014



3:41: 04 PM

CHAIR OLSON asked whether this bill would require a ful
[ beverage di spensary |icense].

SH RLEY COTE, Executive Director, Al coholic Beverage Contro
Board ("ABC Board"), Departnent of Commerce, Conmunity &
Econom ¢ Devel opnent, responded that the bill wuld extend
beyond just serving beer and wine to include spirits, simlar to
a beverage dispensary license such that golf course |icensees
woul d be allowed to serve, beer, wine, or hard |iquor.

3:42: 03 PM

CHAI R OLSON asked whet her she had any issues about the minors on
prem ses after the commttee [adopted Conceptual Anmendnment 1].

M5. COTE answered that Representative MIllett was correct, that
the licensee is responsible for ensuring that alcoholic
beverages are not put in the hands of those under the age of 21.
Currently, staff has to ensure the underage persons are not
served or given access to beer and wine so she assunmed this
woul d extend to hard |iquor on golf courses.

3:42: 55 PM

CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 213.

3:43:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT noved to report HB 213, as anended, out
of conmmttee wth i ndi vi dual reconmendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, the CSHB

213(L&C) was reported fromthe House Labor and Comrerce Standing
Conmi ttee.

The commttee took an at-ease from3:44 p.m to 3:48 p. m

HB 276- MOTOR VEH CLE DEALER EMPLOYEES

3:48: 12 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 276, "An Act nmaking the Al aska Wage and Hour Act
i napplicable to certain enployees of notor vehicle dealers; and
providing for an effective date."

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- February 10, 2014



3:48: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE STEVE THOWPSON, Alaska State Legislature, as
sponsor, said this bill would clarify that auto sales staff,
auto service witers, and auto finance personnel are exenpt from
Al aska's m ni mum wage and hour act. These enployees are paid on
conm ssion and have never been hourly enployees. He expl ai ned
that HB 276 was drafted in response to confusion caused by the
regulation, 8 AAC 15.910 (a) (16), which read, "straight
commi ssion” nmeans a fixed percentage of each dollar of sales an
enpl oyee nekes; ...." This regulation becane interpreted to
mean that the comm ssion nust be applied to the gross anount of
the sale. VWiile this interpretation mght be appropriate for
sone conm ssion sales, such as real estate, it is not
appropriate or customary for auto sales. An auto deal ership
must pay for the vehicle first fromthe sale price. Advertising
| aws prevent an "add on charge" to an advertised sale price to
accommodate a comm ssion. Thus, if a net sale is three percent
of the gross, the dealer cannot pay a commssion of five

per cent . This bill wll clarify the |ong-standing enploynent
practices of the industry by maintaining a conmssion based
enpl oyment system that works well for both enployer and
enpl oyees. The DLWD has been helpful and anended its

regul ati ons; however, as a result of litigation it is necessary
to seek final clarification in statute.

3:50: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked for the distinction between auto
sal es transactions and other industries. He asked whether this
requi renent should apply to other retail sales' businesses.

JANE PI ERSQON, Staff, Representative Steve Thonpson, Al aska State
Legislature, said she did not think store sales comm ssions are
suppl enented by sal aries. For exanple, it would take a |ot of
shoes to make a living. She related her understanding that auto
sales are one of the few industries in which the dealership is
selling a product it purchased fromthe manufacturer.

3:52:26 PM
REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON remarked department stores likely own
the goods. He related his understanding that the definition for

straight comm ssion applied to gross, but not net cost for the
deal er shi p.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- February 10, 2014



M5. Pl ERSON answer ed yes.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether this bill would exenpt
all auto deal ership enpl oyees fromthe wage and hour statutes.

M5. PIERSON deferred to Marten Martensen, president of the
Al aska Auto Deal ers Association to answer.

3:53: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether federal wage and hour
regul ati ons woul d offer protections to auto enpl oyees.

M5. PIERSON answered no; that this provision falls wunder AS
23.10.055(a), which pertains to exenptions, conpensation of
executives, adm nistrators, and professionals.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether it was her understanding
that federal law would not apply, in instances in which a
sal esperson did not earn sufficient comm ssions.

M5. Pl ERSON answer ed no.

3:54:29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON sai d under HB 276, the car sal es person
woul d not have a guaranteed m ni num wage or strai ght conmm ssion,
but woul d earn a comm ssion on net sales.

M5. Pl ERSON answer ed yes.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether the enployee negotiates
with the dealer on the definition of net sales.

M5. PI ERSON understood that the enployee would have an idea of
the approxi mate purchase price and adjust the sale accordingly,
such as meke the decision to take a three percent commi ssion
rather than not sell the car.

3:55:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON said he was surprised that the service
witer who isn't selling anything is also on comm ssion.

M5. PIERSON deferred to M. Martensen to answer.

3:57:36 PM

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -11- February 10, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked whether any issues were identified
prior to adoption of these regul ations. She clarified she was
interested in the reason the DLWD adopted the regul ati ons.

GREY M TCHELL, Acting Assistant Conm ssioner, Departnent of
Labor & Workforce Devel opnent (DLWD), said the departnment wanted
to change the regulatory definition of straight comm ssion from
a very narrow definition to ensure that the explanation the DLW
provi des enployers and enployees pertaining to straight sales
mat ched the regulatory definition. The departnment said that its
application of the narrow definition of straight comi ssion
wasn't being used and the regul ati on changes addressed this.

3:58: 55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked whether the departnent received
any "pushback" during public comment.

MR MTCHELL recalled that the departnent did not receive a
significant nunber of coments. He suggested that the
departnment may have received approximately five comments, wth
three in support, with two opposed.

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked whether the DLWD realized that
t hese changes represented significant inpacts to the industry.
She suggested that the dealerships weigh in to brief the
commttee on how the regul ations inpact them

MR. M TCHELL agr eed.
4:00: 04 PM

CHAI R OLSON asked whether other industries were inpacted by the
regul ati on changes.

MR. M TCHELL offered his belief that the bill has a definition
for "notor vehicle dealers' under AS [08.66.350], which involves
nore than just cars, for exanple, boats. He deferred to the
sponsor to answer.

CHAI R OLSON remarked boats are a form of transportation.
REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON pointed out that the definition in

proposed Sec. 2 of the bill refers to a separate definition for
nmotor vehicles. He clarified that this section refers to AS 45.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -12- February 10, 2014



MR MTCHELL agreed that proposed Sec. 2, referred to AS
[45.25.990] and the definition wunder [AS 08.66.350]. In
response to a question, he said he was not certain of the
nuances i n paragraph (3) of proposed Sec. 2.

4:02:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON said he wanted to grasp the concept of
conmi ssi ons. He expressed interest that the auto dealership's
financing staff is also on commssion since that job is nore
adm nistrative in nature.

MR MTCHELL answered that the questions pertain nore to
i ndustry question since the DLW hasn't done a study on car
deal ershi p enpl oyees. He assuned enployees fell under a variety
of salary paynent nethods, which mght be the reason for the
attenpt to exenpt the enpl oyees. For exanple, if the enployees
were paid on a straight comm ssion, they would be excluded from
overtine. Thus, changing the law and excluding this specific
group would nean it wouldn't matter if the enpl oyees were paid a
strai ght comm ssion or an hourly rate.

4:04: 20 PM

MARTEN MARTENSEN, President, Al aska Auto Dealers Association
(AADA), offered to provide in layman's terns the reason the AADA
supports HB 276. He said that two years ago, an AADA nenber
cane to the board and expl ai ned the business was being sued for
not paying their comm ssion sales staff overtine. He said that
car dealers don't pay sales associates overtine since they are
exenpt under AS 23.10.055, and earn a straight comm ssion. The
plaintiff's attorney argued that the enployees are not paid on
straight conmission since the enployees do not receive a
comm ssion based on the fixed percentage of each sales dollar as
defined in regulations 8 AAC 15.910. At this point, the AADA
met with DLWD s Comm ssioner Bishop and M. Mtchell to express
concern over 8AAC 15.910. The AADA explained the standard
i ndustry practice of dealerships is to pay sales associates
based on the net sales value or "profit."

4: 06: 40 PM
MR. MARTENSEN related a scenario in which in which the dealer
has an on the lot vehicle for sale at $20,000, after having paid

$18, 000. The Continental Mdtors would pay its sales associates
25 percent of the $2,000 profit, or $500. The depart nent

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 13- February 10, 2014



considered this and later agreed to change the regul ati on, which
was acconplished in Septenber 2012.

VR. MARTENSEN said that wth the regulation change the
deal ership thought it was finally paying its sales staff wthin
the law, but the plaintiff's attorney argued that federal |aw 29
CFR 779.413 [pertaining to straight salary or hourly rates]

defines straight conmssion as Alaska s |aw Since the
regul ations help to clarify the law, the judge agreed with the
plaintiff's attorney so the auto dealers still have problens.

Therefore, the AADA supports HB 276 to change the statutes.
Finally, a federal law, 29 USC 213 (b) (10) (a), exenpts car
sal es associates fromovertinme, but Al aska statutes does not.

4:08:37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON said he was anmzed that this has
recently arisen. He asked whether in the past 20 years anyone
has raised the issue and asked for clarification of the federa
st at ut es.

MR. MARTENSEN answered no; the issue has never been raised, and
it caught the industry off guard. He explained that, by |aw,
deal ers must have witten pay plans. He said his deal ership has
been in business for 45 years and has had witten pay plans that
clearly identify the salary provisions. Enployees sign pay plan
agreenents that specify straight conmm ssion. Unfortunately,
this seens to represent a | oophole and the judge agreed that his
deal ership is not abiding by |aw.

4:10: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD sunmarized that the |lawsuit ensued, that
the state sided with plaintiff and overturned the traditiona
practices. She asked if she understood the issue correctly.

MR. MARTENSEN answer ed yes.

4:10: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON remarked that his sense of this is
di fferent; the state tried to support clarification of
regul ations helpful to the industry, but the court system did
not support the practice.

M5. PIERSEN, in response to an earlier question, said that notor
vehicles fall wunder AS 28.10, which is where the definition

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -14- February 10, 2014



exi sts. The DLWD worked "hand-in-hand" with the auto deal ership
to change the regulation, which was not recognized by federa
I aw. This bill would place the regulation into statute. She
did not think this bill would inmpact industry pay practices
since its paynment practices haven't changed; in fact, this is
how t he system has wor ked.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON remar ked that he was glad to hear about
the witten pay plan.

CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 276.

4:12: 45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD noved to report HB [276] out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, HB 276 was reported
fromthe House Labor and Commerce Standing Comm ttee.

The commttee took an at-ease from4:13 p.m to 4:16 p. m

HB 211- EMPLOYMENT OF PERSONS W TH DI SABI LI TI ES

4:16: 18 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 211, "An Act relating to the education and
enpl oyment of individuals with disabilities.™

4:16: 23 PM

VASILIOS Jd ALOPSCS, Staff, Representative Charisse Mllett,
Al aska State Legislature, stated that HB 211 will make Al aska an
enpl oynment-first state, which is a national novenent for all
agencies in the state to work towards gainful, integrated
enpl oyment for persons with disabilities. This policy would
i nclude education policy and how the persons are provided
servi ce. This neans those who have disabilities but are
gainfully enployed live healthier lives, have a higher quality
of life, and incur |ower health care costs.

MR. d ALOPSCS provided a section-by-section analysis of HB 211.
He said that proposed Section 1 would require the Departnent of
Education and Early Developnent (EED) to report to the Mental
Health Trust Authority with respect to the data collection on
the transition of services. Under Section 2, the bill would

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 15- February 10, 2014



al so add an education plan to include a goal for children 15
years of age and older to becone gainfully enployed. He added
that this doesn't preclude post-secondary educati on.

4:18: 29 PM

VR. G ALOPSOS stated that Sections 3-5 have the same
aspirational |anguage inbedded in the requisite titles for the
DLWD, the Departnent of Health and Social Services (HSS) and the
Department of Adm nistration. The fiscal notes show that this
is existing policy so the fiscal inpact is absorbed by the
department and these departnents have zero fiscal notes.

4:19: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT referred to page 2, line 2, and offered
Conceptual Anmendnent 1, which would add after "time", "within
one year of |leaving high school"” and delete [the remainder of
subsection (c), after "time" which read, in part:

for conpensation that is
(1) at or above the m ni nrum wage; and
(2) not less than the conpensation paid by
the enployer for the sane or simlar work performed by
an individual who is not disabl ed.

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT said that M. G al opsos can expl ai n what
t his change woul d acconpli sh

MR. G ALOPSCS expl ai ned the reason for Conceptual Amendnent 1 is
to conform to the legislative intent to take the sane data
collection requirenents that the EED is required to performwth
respect to special education with no inpact to the departnent.

4:21:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether the |egislature would no
| onger set a mandate for m ni num wages.

MR. G ALOPSOS answered no; that the definitions would apply to

the goals for persons with disabilities in other titles. He
expl ai ned that Concept ual Amendnent 1 pertains to data
collection for transitional services. The goals will still be
present, but the way the |anguage was inbedded in the bill it

required data collection the departnment does not currently
perform although this data is collected by the DLVD. Thus,

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 16- February 10, 2014



Conceptual Amendnment 1 would elimnate the redundancy and focus
on the transition services of those 15 years of age and ol der.

There bei ng no objection, Conceptual Amendrment 1 was adopt ed.
4.22:49 PM

RON PAUL, Disabilities Enploynent Specialist, Frontier Comrunity
Services (FCS), explained that FCS is a non-profit organization
that provides services for people of all ages and has served 190
persons with a disability under its behavioral health support
enpl oyment program Currently, 26 of its 38 enrolled clients
are gainfully enployed for a 68 percent enploynent rate. He
reported that FCS's clients from referrals through Serenity
House, the adult probation office, ALELA, the Peninsula
Community Health Center, and vocational rehabilitation office
have serious disabilities. He offered his belief that w thout
the program these individuals would |ikely not be enpl oyed.

4:24:17 PM

MR. PAUL provided specific exanples of persons with disabilities
that the FCS has assisted, including assisting an incarcerated
person who is now working on the North Slope, a honel ess wonan

now working in retail, and an obese man who has been able to
sufficiently deal with issues allow him to attend conmunity
college and live in his own apartnent. He illustrated the val ue

of FCS, given that disabled people who cone to the program
basically "have nowhere to go" but are assisted by the program
and becone gainful ly enpl oyed.

MR. PAUL said he was unsure how those individuals who are
seriously disabled and confined to wheelchairs wll obtain help.
He offered his belief that no matter what disability people
have, they deserve the opportunity to secure neaningful and
gai nful enploynment and receive the sanme assistance and respect
as those not disabl ed.

4:28:20 PM

CATHY BABUSCIO, Director of Human Resources, WMat-Su Regional
Medi cal Center (MSRMC), said MSRMC s project search programis a
uni que "business |led" vocational rehabilitation program for
adult students 18-22 years of age who experience disabilities.
This program provides students who want to work an opportunity
to develop transferable job skills. The ultinmate program goal
is independent adults securing enploynent within their

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -17- February 10, 2014



comunities. She explained that students experience ful

i mrersion at the hospital, and individualized jobs, devel opnent,
and pl acenment occurs based on student strength and skills. The
project search program is a collaborative effort between the
Mat anuska- Susitna  Borough  School District, the Governor's
Council on Disabilities and Special Education, and the D vision
of  Vocati onal Rehabi litati on. The MSRMC has had three
successful program conpletions wth 100 percent enploynent of
their students. She pointed out the average wage is (greater
than $13 per hour. Additionally, 20 percent of those conpleting
the program have been awarded positions at the MSRMC She
stated that this program has increased enpl oyee satisfaction and
has benefitted the hospital with dedicated and skilled workers.
She said that the MSRMC supports enploynment first.

4:30: 03 PM

RI C NELSQN, Menber, Governor's Council on Disabilities & Special
Education, testified through an interpreter, as foll ows:

Good evening, M. Chair. I have ny Bachelor's
[ degree] in business admnistration. 1've always been
told 1'll never be able to work or even able to give
back to society. You know, |'ve worked a couple part-
time jobs and every time |'ve worked, people have
enj oyed working with ne. | bring a different take on
life on how people work with disabilities. And within
a year or tw after | graduate with mnmy Masters
[degree], | want to start ny own business. | want to
open an agency that serves people with disabilities.
| want to give back for what | have gotten through
with nmy life. I want to nmke sure that people can

work in their own community doing whatever they want.
| urge to please pass HB 211

4:35:13 PM
ERI C YANUSZ provided his testinony, as foll ows:

| am Eric Yanusz and |'m currently working at REACH
where Cathy works, too. [In] nmy first rotation the

day surgery is sanitized, dusted: take out trash,
repair the chemicals, [and] <clean the |obby area.
Second rotation, food service: fill required buckets,
w pe tables, wap silverware, [and] refill napkins.
Indisc. | don't know ny third rotation

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- February 10, 2014



4:36:01 PM

LUANN YANUSZ stated that she is the parent of a 21-year-old son
[the previous testifier], with disabilities. She explained that
parents of children with disabilities do not know what to

expect, how nuch they wll be able to learn or do, or
contri bute. She said her son hasn't received a high school
diploma so he is in a lower range than many in society. In his
current program "Project Search"™ and other job training

prograns, he has |earned what enployers expect of him such as
to be at work every day, develop a good work ethic, show
initiative, and follow the rules. She said he is hoping through
the transition from Project Search to get at least a half-tine

job and continue his work routine. She said he will be out of
the school district this May and he is very "routine oriented.”
She hoped the transitional services wll provide assistance so
his routine from working at school to working in the community
can continue instead of him watching television. If he is
watching television, he wll know the television schedule.

Under the program he is gainfully enployed in the comunity,
| earns how to take the bus and get to his job, what the enployer
expects, and would earn appropriate wages. I n conclusion, she
sai d, she supports the enploynment first bill.

4:38:41 PM

M LLI E RYAN, Executive Director, REACH, Inc., stated that REACH
serves about 400 individuals, primarily with intellectual and

devel opnental disabilities in northern Southeast Al aska. One
service REACH provides is enploynment, and it 1is «currently
i npl ementing enploynent-first policies across the agency. For

exanpl e, when people are developing their service plans, the
first thing REACH asks about is enploynment. REACH has collected
baseline information on the percent of youth and adults who have

enpl oyment goals in their service plans. She indicated that
REACH s board of directors will be setting targets over the next
five years. She stated that providers can do a lot to support

peopl e and help them get enploynent but the state nust provide
strong policies that pronote enploynent as the preferred outcone
for individuals with devel opnental disabilities. She enphasized
that HB 211 will really make that happen. She thanked nenbers
for the opportunity to support of HB 211

4:40: 08 PM

CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 211

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- February 10, 2014



4:40: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT renmarked that she was appointed |ast year
to serve on the CGovernor's Council on D sabilities & Special
Educati on (GCDSE). She said it has been an honor to work with
the GCDSE, including those present today. She said the GCDSE s

priority legislation is HB 211 and HB 212. She said the
|l egislature is wrking on healthy comunities and the
legislature's priorities are to nmake sure that businesses grow
and help individuals becone independent. She said that a job
does wonders for people, in ternms of depression, suicide, self-
worth, caring for self, developing a social |ife, and neeting
peopl e, and being an active part of the community is sonething
everyone in Al aska deserves. This bill would help us recognize
individuals for their special qualities. She said, "The sky is
the limt. As they grow and learn skills, the Iimtations they
overcome are phenonenal." She has observed Ric Nel son graduate
from college. She is thrilled he is working towards his
Master's Degree. She said he is an inspirational person and it
is neaningful to speak with himto learn about his life. She
said that Teresa Holt has been an excellent executive director
for the council. She said she has probably |earned nore from
serving on this council fromthe human perspective and it was an
honor to <carry the bill. The bill is truly a work in

col |l aboration with a lot of people who care. She characterized
the council as being a dedi cated group.

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT noved to report HB 211, as anended, out
of commttee wth i ndi vi dual reconmendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

4:44: 26 PM

There being no objection, the CSHB 211(L&C) was reported from
t he House Labor and Conmerce Standing Conmmittee.

4:44:. 34 PM
ADJ OURNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
4:44 p. m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 20- February 10, 2014



